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FORWARD IN FAITH MINISTRY U.K.

REPORT OF THE TRUSTEES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

 

The trustees present their report with the financial statements of the charity for the year ended 31 March 2016.  The
trustees have adopted the provisions of Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended  Practice
applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in  the
UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (effective 1 January 2015).

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT
Governing document
The charity is controlled by its governing document, a deed of trust, and constitutes an unincorporated charity.

REFERENCE AND ADMINISTRATIVE DETAILS
Registered Charity number
1049383

Principal address
58 Hainge Road
Tividale
Oldbury
B69 2PD

Trustees
MR R MANDISODZA 
MR M MARIMBA 
MR J D K SAMASUWO 
MR R C BEVAN 
MRS J THONDHLANA 
MR T MIKE 

Auditors
E Dessai & Co Limited
Chartered Accountants
Vyman House
104 College Road
Harrow
Middlesex
HA1 1BQ

Bankers
Barclays Bank PLC
126 Station Road
Edgware
Middlesex
HA8 7RY
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FORWARD IN FAITH MINISTRY U.K.

REPORT OF THE TRUSTEES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

 

STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES RESPONSIBILITIES
The trustees are responsible for preparing the Report of the Trustees and the financial statements in accordance  with
applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

The law applicable to charities in England and Wales, the Charities Act 2011, Charity (Accounts and  Reports)
Regulations 2008 and the provisions of the trust deed requires the trustees to prepare financial statements for  each
financial year which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the charity and of the incoming resources  and
application of resources, including the income and expenditure, of the charity for that period. In preparing  those
financial statements, the trustees are required to

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
- observe the methods and principles in the Charity SORP;
- make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
- state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures  disclosed

and explained in the financial statements;
- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the  charity

will continue in business.

The trustees are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any  time
the financial position of the charity and to enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the  Charities
Act 2011, the Charity (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 and the provisions of the trust deed. They are  also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charity and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention  and
detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the charity and financial information included on  the
charity's website. 

Approved by order of the board of trustees on ............................................. and signed on its behalf by:

.............................................
MR R C BEVAN  - Trustee
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS TO THE TRUSTEES OF
FORWARD IN FAITH MINISTRY U.K.

 

We have audited the financial statements of Forward In Faith Ministry U.K. for the year ended 31 March 2016  which
comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, the Balance Sheet and the related notes. The financial  reporting
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting  Standards
(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice). 

This report is made solely to the charity's trustees, as a body, in accordance with Section 144 of the Charities Act  2011
and regulations made under Section 154 of that Act. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to  the
charity's trustees those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors' report and for no other purpose. To  the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the charity and  the
charity's trustees as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed. 

Respective responsibilities of trustees and auditors
As explained more fully in the Statement of Trustees Responsibilities, the trustees are responsible for the preparation  of
the financial statements which give a true and fair view.

We have been appointed as auditors under Section 144 of the Charities Act 2011 and report in accordance  with
regulations made under Section 154 of that Act.

Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable  law
andInternational Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the  Auditing
Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors. 

Scope of the audit of the financial statements
An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to  give
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or  error.
This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the charity's circumstances and  have
been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by  the
trustees; and the overall presentation of the financial statements. In addition, we read all the financial and  non-financial
information in the Report of the Trustees to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and  to
identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the  knowledge
acquired by us in the course of performing the audit. If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements  or
inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion the financial statements:
- give a true and fair view of the state of the charity's affairs as at 31 March 2016 and of its incoming  resources

and application of resources for the year then ended;
- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and
- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Charities Act 2011.
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS TO THE TRUSTEES OF
FORWARD IN FAITH MINISTRY U.K.

 

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Charities Act 2011 requires us to report to  you
if, in our opinion:
- the information given in the Report of the Trustees is inconsistent in any material respect with the  financial

statements ; or
- sufficient accounting records have not been kept; or
- the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

E Dessai & Co Limited
Eligible to act as an auditor in terms of Section 1212 of the Companies Act 2006
Chartered Accountants
Vyman House
104 College Road
Harrow
Middlesex
HA1 1BQ

Date: .............................................

Note:
The maintenance and integrity of the Forward In Faith Ministry U.K. website is the responsibility of the trustees;  the
work carried out by the auditors does not involve consideration of these matters and, accordingly, the auditors accept  no
responsibility for any changes that may have occurred to the financial statements since they were initially presented  on
the website.
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FORWARD IN FAITH MINISTRY U.K.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

 

2016 2015
Unrestricted Total 

fund funds
Notes £ £

INCOME AND ENDOWMENTS FROM
Donations and legacies 2 2,987,359 2,541,223

Investment income 3 908 8,064

Total 2,988,267 2,549,287

EXPENDITURE ON
Charitable activities 4
Pastors support    1,148,705 959,261
Church support 649,880 451,537
Mission support 285,869 253,188
Governance cost 365,652 322,525

Other 68,937 36,634

Total 2,519,043 2,023,145

NET INCOME 469,224 526,142

RECONCILIATION OF FUNDS

Total funds brought forward 4,464,986 3,938,844

TOTAL FUNDS CARRIED FORWARD 4,934,210 4,464,986

CONTINUING OPERATIONS
All income and expenditure has arisen from continuing activities.

The notes form part of these financial statements
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FORWARD IN FAITH MINISTRY U.K.

BALANCE SHEET
AT 31 MARCH 2016

 

2016 2015
Unrestricted Total 

fund funds
Notes £ £ £

FIXED ASSETS
Tangible assets 9 3,001,231 2,219,362

CURRENT ASSETS
Debtors: amounts falling due within one year 10 20,908 30,217
Cash at bank and in hand 1,921,812 2,232,907

1,942,720 2,263,124

CREDITORS
Amounts falling due within one year 11 (9,741) (17,500)

NET CURRENT ASSETS 1,932,979 2,245,624

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES 4,934,210 4,464,986

NET ASSETS 4,934,210 4,464,986

FUNDS 12
Unrestricted funds:
General fund 4,934,210 4,464,986

TOTAL FUNDS 4,934,210 4,464,986

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Trustees on ............................................. and were signed on  its
behalf by:

.............................................
MR R C BEVAN -Trustee

.............................................
MR R MANDISODZA -Trustee

The notes form part of these financial statements
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FORWARD IN FAITH MINISTRY U.K.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

 

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES
 
Basis of preparing the financial statements
The financial statements of the charity, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been prepared  in
accordance with the Charities SORP (FRS 102) 'Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement  of
Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the  Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (effective 1 January  2015)',
Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic  of
Ireland' and the Charities Act 2011. The financial statements have been prepared under the historical  cost
convention.

Financial reporting standard 102 - reduced disclosure exemptions
The charity has taken advantage of the following disclosure exemption in preparing these financial statements,  as
permitted by FRS 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland':

- the requirements of Section 7 Statement of Cash Flows.

Income
All income is recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities once the charity has entitlement to the funds,  it
is probable that the income will be received and the amount can be measured reliably. 

Expenditure
Liabilities are recognised as expenditure as soon as there is a legal or constructive obligation committing  the
charity to that expenditure, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement  and
the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is accounted for on an accruals basis and  has
been classified under headings that aggregate all cost related to the category. Where costs cannot be  directly
attributed to particular headings they have been allocated to activities on a basis consistent with the use  of
resources. 

Allocation and apportionment of costs

Tangible fixed assets
Depreciation is provided at the following annual rates in order to write off each asset over its estimated  useful
life.

Short leasehold - at variable rates on reducing balance
Musical instruments - 25% on reducing balance
Fixtures and fittings - 25% on reducing balance
Motor vehicles - 25% on reducing balance
Office equipments - 25% on reducing balance

Taxation
The charity is exempt from tax on its charitable activities. 

Fund accounting
Unrestricted funds can be used in accordance with the charitable objectives at the discretion of the trustees.

Restricted funds can only be used for particular restricted purposes within the objects of the charity.  Restrictions
arise when specified by the donor or when funds are raised for particular restricted purposes.

Further explanation of the nature and purpose of each fund is included in the notes to the financial statements. 

Hire purchase and leasing commitments
Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Statement of Financial Activities on a straight line  basis
over the period of the lease.
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FORWARD IN FAITH MINISTRY U.K.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

 

2. DONATIONS AND LEGACIES

2016 2015
£ £

Donations 752,567 623,259
Gift aid 195,506 -
Free will offering 342,710 288,300
Tithes 1,629,664 1,552,444
Ministers tithes 66,912 77,220

2,987,359 2,541,223

3. INVESTMENT INCOME

2016 2015
£ £

Rents received 125 7,230
Bank interest income 783 834

908 8,064

4. CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES COSTS

Direct costs Support costs Totals
(See note 5)

£ £ £
Pastors support    1,148,705 - 1,148,705
Church support 649,880 - 649,880
Mission support 285,869 - 285,869
Governance cost - 365,652 365,652

2,084,454 365,652 2,450,106

5. SUPPORT COSTS

Governance
costs
£

Governance cost 365,652

6. TRUSTEES' REMUNERATION AND BENEFITS

There were no trustees' remuneration or other benefits for the year ended 31 March 2016 nor for the year  ended
31 March 2015 .

Trustees' expenses
There were no trustees' expenses paid for the year ended 31 March 2016  nor for the year ended 31 March 2015 .
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FORWARD IN FAITH MINISTRY U.K.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

 

7. STAFF COSTS

2016 2015
£ £

Wages and salaries 825,957 625,601

The average monthly number of employees during the year was as follows:

2016 2015
Charitable Activities 39 39
Governance 7 7

46 46

No employees received emoluments in excess of £60,000.

8. COMPARATIVES FOR THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES

Unrestricted
fund
£

INCOME AND ENDOWMENTS FROM
Donations and legacies 2,541,223

Investment income 8,064

Total 2,549,287

EXPENDITURE ON
Charitable activities
Pastors support    959,261
Church support 451,537
Mission support 253,188
Governance cost 322,525

Other 36,634

Total 2,023,145

NET INCOME 526,142

RECONCILIATION OF FUNDS

Total funds brought forward 3,938,844

TOTAL FUNDS CARRIED FORWARD 4,464,986

Page 9



FORWARD IN FAITH MINISTRY U.K.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

 

9. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Freehold Short Musical
property leasehold instruments

£ £ £
COST
At 1 April 2015 2,097,390 17,000 154,471
Additions 817,723 - 14,273
Disposals - (17,000) -

At 31 March 2016 2,915,113 - 168,744

DEPRECIATION
At 1 April 2015 - 3,696 126,419
Charge for year - - 10,581
Eliminated on disposal - (3,696) -

At 31 March 2016 - - 137,000

NET BOOK VALUE
At 31 March 2016 2,915,113 - 31,744

At 31 March 2015 2,097,390 13,304 28,052

Fixtures and Office
fittings Motor vehicles equipments Totals

£ £ £ £
COST
At 1 April 2015 78,549 94,773 38,191 2,480,374
Additions 26,902 - 3,862 862,760
Disposals - (92,123) - (109,123 )

At 31 March 2016 105,451 2,650 42,053 3,234,011

DEPRECIATION
At 1 April 2015 48,382 55,535 26,980 261,012
Charge for year 14,267 89 3,768 28,705
Eliminated on disposal - (53,241) - (56,937)

At 31 March 2016 62,649 2,383 30,748 232,780

NET BOOK VALUE
At 31 March 2016 42,802 267 11,305 3,001,231

At 31 March 2015 30,167 39,238 11,211 2,219,362

Page 10



FORWARD IN FAITH MINISTRY U.K.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

 

10. DEBTORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

2016 2015
£ £

Other debtors 20,908 30,217

11. CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

2016 2015
£ £

Taxation and social security (10,689) -
Other creditors 20,430 17,500

9,741 17,500

12. MOVEMENT IN FUNDS

Net movement
At 1.4.15 in funds At 31.3.16

£ £ £
Unrestricted funds
General fund 4,464,986 469,224 4,934,210

TOTAL FUNDS 4,464,986 469,224 4,934,210

Net movement in funds, included in the above are as follows:

Incoming Resources Movement in
resources expended funds

£ £ £
Unrestricted funds
General fund 2,988,267 (2,519,043 ) 469,224

TOTAL FUNDS 2,988,267 (2,519,043 ) 469,224

13. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

There were no related party transactions for the year ended 31 March 2016.

14. FIRST YEAR ADOPTION
 
Transitional relief
On transition to FRS 102, the charity has taken advantage of the following transitional relief:

• to use a previous GAAP revaluation as deemed cost on:
- an item of property, plant and equipment;

• to retain accounting policies for reported assets, liabilities and equity measurement at date of transition to
FRS 102 for dormant companies.
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FORWARD IN FAITH MINISTRY U.K.

RECONCILIATION OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

 

Effect of
transition to

UK GAAP FRS 102 FRS 102
Notes £ £ £

INCOME AND ENDOWMENTS FROM
Donations and legacies 2,541,223 - 2,541,223
Investment income 8,064 - 8,064

Total 2,549,287 - 2,549,287

EXPENDITURE ON
Charitable activities 1,663,986 322,525 1,986,511
Governance costs 322,525 (322,525 ) -
Other 36,634 - 36,634

Total 2,023,145 - 2,023,145

NET INCOME 526,142 - 526,142
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FORWARD IN FAITH MINISTRY U.K.

RECONCILIATION OF FUNDS
AT 1 APRIL 2014

(DATE OF TRANSITION TO FRS 102)
 

Effect of
transition to

UK GAAP FRS 102 FRS 102
Notes £ £ £

- - -

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES - - -

- - -

FUNDS

TOTAL FUNDS - - -
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FORWARD IN FAITH MINISTRY U.K.

RECONCILIATION OF FUNDS
AT 31 MARCH 2015

 

Effect of
transition to

UK GAAP FRS 102 FRS 102
Notes £ £ £

FIXED ASSETS
Tangible assets 2,219,362 - 2,219,362

CURRENT ASSETS
Debtors 30,217 - 30,217
Cash at bank and in hand 2,232,907 - 2,232,907

2,263,124 - 2,263,124

CREDITORS
Amounts falling due within one year (17,500) - (17,500)

NET CURRENT ASSETS 2,245,624 - 2,245,624

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 4,464,986 - 4,464,986

NET ASSETS 4,464,986 - 4,464,986

FUNDS
Unrestricted funds 4,464,986 - 4,464,986

TOTAL FUNDS 4,464,986 - 4,464,986
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FORWARD IN FAITH MINISTRY U.K.

DETAILED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

2016 2015
£ £

INCOME AND ENDOWMENTS

Donations and legacies
Donations 752,567 623,259
Gift aid 195,506 -
Free will offering 342,710 288,300
Tithes 1,629,664 1,552,444
Ministers tithes 66,912 77,220

2,987,359 2,541,223

Investment income
Rents received 125 7,230
Bank interest income 783 834

908 8,064

Total incoming resources 2,988,267 2,549,287

EXPENDITURE

Charitable activities
Wages 702,063 535,122
Hire of plant and machinery 1,970 12,134
Rent, Rates and water of Pastors residence 180,032 225,982
Light & heat of Pastors residence 23,231 42,744
Advertising 407,404 141,527
Motor Vehicle expenses 5,937 43,578
Leaders training 6,142 10,164
Mission support & Donation 285,869 253,188
Church & hall hire 207,645 205,611
Conference cost 26,924 48,687
Travelling & accommodation 237,237 145,249

2,084,454 1,663,986

Other
Short leasehold - 411
Depn of musical instrument 10,581 9,351
Fixtures and fittings 14,267 10,056
Motor vehicles 88 13,079
Depn of office equipment 3,768 3,737
Loss on sale of tangible fixed assets 40,233 -

68,937 36,634

Support costs

This page does not form part of the statutory financial statements

Page 15



FORWARD IN FAITH MINISTRY U.K.

DETAILED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

2016 2015
£ £

Governance costs
Wages 123,894 90,479
Auditors' remuneration 15,000 18,900
Office Rent,Rates and water 61,719 62,937
Telephone 21,836 27,031
Postage and stationery 9,490 11,165
Repair & Renewal 19,964 26,850
Insurance 16,888 19,580
Sundry Expenses 12,553 15,026
Staff Welfare 12,103 4,314
Freight charges 8,656 1,021
Mission Transfer Fee 2,415 4,411
Professional Fees 11,340 9,905
Legal Fees 41,908 24,678
Bank Charges 7,886 6,228

365,652 322,525

Total resources expended 2,519,043 2,023,145

Net income 469,224 526,142

This page does not form part of the statutory financial statements
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 FROM THE ARCHBISHOP’S OFFICE (TEN DAYS PRAYER LETTER) 
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1 December 2014 

THE LETTER FROM THE APOSTLE EZEKIEL GUTI TO ALL THE  

CHURCHES OF FORWARD IN FAITH ALL OVER WHERE IT IS IN THE 

WORLD IN PREPARATION TO ENTER THE NEW YEAR 2015 FOR THE TEN 

DAYS OF PRAYER AND FASTING. 

Greetings to you all in the wonderful name of our Lord Jesus Christ. Grace to you and 

peace from God our father and the Lord Jesus Christ. 

Please read this letter slowly and carefully in every service during 10 days prayer, so 

that everyone understands. 

As we enter the New Year with the 10 days of prayer and fasting, the year 2015 is The 

year of "Walking in our inheritance practicing the Kingdom of God."  Luke 12vs 32, 

2Peter 1 vs 4. We need grace and understanding. 

Walking in our inheritance is walking in our blessings. Scripture says Prov 10vs22 "The 

blessing of the Lord makes one rich and He adds no sorrow with it."  Those who are rich 

through the blessing of the Lord they will have peace in mind, peace in family and peace 

in business. 

Scripture says in Prov 28vs20 "A faithful man will abound with blessings but he who 

hastens to be rich will not go unpunished." True riches you have to first lay a foundation 

step by step. We need the grace of God to be faithful, so the blessing will abound in us. 

P.O BOX W68 
Waterfall 

Harare  
Zimbabwe 

Telephone: 2920 271; 291 2034; 292 2957; 292 3004; 292 7921; 292 7923;       
  292 3005; 292 7922; 292 3002; 292 2958; 292 3003; 292 2956 

 Fax 2920 515; 
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 Scripture says 2 Peter 1vs4 "by which have been given to us exceedingly great and 

precious promises that through these you maybe partakers of the divine nature having 

escaped the corruption that is in the world through lust."  We need to escape from 

corruption by learning to be faithful. When we are faithful, walking and practicing the 

Kingdom of God, we are partakers of the divine nature. 

To become rich you start small and go up step by step. You can only be rich by saving 

money. Financial breakthrough comes by saving money little by little not short period. 

The preaching that you must have a house, this and that and yet a person is straight from 

school or just starting work will cause a person who does not have a house to feel poor. 

It is not good preaching. It will cause many people to go and borrow and then suffer.  In 

our ministry we do not encourage that kind of preaching.                                             

You only become rich through saving money. To be rich is having enough to eat, 

enough to send children to school, enough clothes for children, enough to pay bills. You 

are very rich. All extra is for helping others and your church.                                        

My prayer and desire is for you to prosper in and out.                                                    

Let us as usual in all ten days of prayer and fasting have chains of prayer bands and have 

prayer conventions from 8-10 January 2015.                                                                 

Thank you for praying for me as I pray for you. God be with you. God bless you.  God 

strengthen you. 

Yours servant of the Lord to the servants and saints of the Lord, 

 

E.H. GUTI 

Write your ten days prayer list according to the needs in your nation after consulting 

your Board. Use the main prayer requests in the original except where it does not apply. 
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 FROM THE ADMINSTRATOR’S DESK 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Introduction 
We thank the God of Ezekiel for being so 
gracious to us in the UK and are so grateful for 
what He has done for us this year. The 
following is our comprehensive report for the 
year 2015. 

 
Ten Days Prayer 
The year started with prayer and fasting as 
usual, with chains of prayer and conventions 
being held in all our churches across the 
Nation. We thank God for the time of prayer as 
we laid a foundation for the year. More 
information on the conventions is in the body 
of the report. 
 
Home Talents 
We are so grateful to the Servant and Apostle 
of God who declared two years of working 
Home Talents. In UK people heeded to this 
declaration and worked as the Lord allowed 
them as we were in the second year. We saw 
the hand of God during the celebrations to 
mark the end of this program as many people 
testified that they bought houses, stands, cars 
and others saved money which they have 
never saved before. Indeed this was nothing 
but the hand of God. 
 
Europe Leaders’ Deeper Life 
We are thankful to God who allowed our 
parents the Servants and Apostles of God to 
be with us during this year’s Europe Deeper 
Life Conference in Birmingham. The Nation 
worked Missions Fund from January to March 
2015 and handed over the money for the work 
of God to the Apostles and Servants of God. 
As you will see in the Missions report, over 
£330,000.00 [three hundred and thirty 
thousand pounds] was raised. Glory be to the 
God of Ezekiel who does great wonders in the 
lives of His people.  
 

The Archbishop expressed his desire to 
have this conference end of July instead of 
March so as to give Pastors more time for 
updates. The house then unanimously 
agreed to have the conference from the   
3-7 August 2016. 
 
Evangelist EJ and Pastor Caroline Guti 
We were so privileged that soon after the 
Deeper Life Conference, Evangelist EJ 
and Pastor Caroline, who were speakers 
at our conference, stayed on for another 
three months and toured most of our 
churches. The reports from the Provinces 
will give more detail on how God used this 
couple in UK. The church was edified, with 
miracles, signs and wonders being 
witnessed. Glory to God. 
 
June Prayer Conventions 

We are so glad to report that the June 
Prayer conventions were really life 
transforming. We aligned with the vision 
and held prayer conventions for all the 
leadership groups in different centres and 
finished with the believers’ conventions in 
all the regions. We give glory to God who 
allowed us to host these conventions 
according to the vision 

National Administrator 

Rev Mishael & Leticia Nyambo 
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National Centre Project 

The God of Ezekiel has done it again, and this time in Europe. Work 
on our National Centre began in June 2015 with the demolition of 
the existing structure. As we write this report, the foundations are 
complete, the storm water drainage and the plumbing drainage are 
almost complete. Work of installing the steel structure will be 
starting soon. Please read through our Building Committee report 
for more detail. 

 
Finances 
God continues to bless our Nation with adequate finances to do His work. 2015 was a very 
busy year in terms of expenditure both internally and externally. We managed to meet all 
our financial obligations and we give glory to God. Our major prayer request is to have 
money to complete our building project in 2016. 
 
Pastors on the move 
We witnessed some transfers of Pastors as follows:- 

- Pastors Washington and Evelyn Mujuruki to Scotland 
- Pastors Abisha and Annie Mushango were deployed to Wales 
- Pastors Sheddy and Regina Mbizvo to Canada  
- Pastor Richard Sabvute to USA 
- Pastor Leticia Nyambo to Birmingham Region 

 

Conclusion 

We thank the God of Ezekiel Guti for what He is doing in our Nation. The 
reports from the Bishop, various Provinces and ministries will give you a 
comprehensive detail of the activities of the church in the United Kingdom. 
We have concluded the year on a high note and believe that 2016 is going to 
be a very exciting year. 

God bless you for taking time to read our report. 
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 NATIONAL STATISTICS SUMMARY & ANALYSIS 
 

 

Abbreviations:- 
SLP - South London Province 
NLP - North London Province 
NWP - North West Province 
 

 

 

  SLP NLP MIDLANDS SCOTLAND NWP YORKSHIRE  Totals  
2015 

Total  
2014 

PROVINCIAL 
STRUCTURE 

    

Total Regions  4 5 5 2 2 2 20 20 

Total Assemblies 20 23 14 5 7 11 80 81 

Home Cell Groups  45 56 55 14 23 20 213 204 

 

LEADERSHIP 
(couples as 1) 

  

Pastors 8 8 9 3 4 2 34 36 

Elders  79 82 75 26 20 26 308 301 

Deacons 63 76 46 14 18 13 230 242 

Totals 150 166 130 43 42 41 572 579 

 

Membership 
(Headcount) 

  

Child Evangelism 
(0-11) 

229 210 260 40 133 32 904 861 

Young Generation 
(12-17) 

87 109 115 20 20 45 396 425 

Youth (18+) 100 120 183 25 42 60 530 496 

Men  139 146 155 40 57 100 637 590 

Women 238 270 301 65 89 110 1073 1036 

Totals 793 852 1014 190 341 347 3537 3408 

 

ACTIVITIES   

New Converts 4 19 73 3 5 10 144 94 

Water Baptism  25 13 27 7 0 10 82 150 

Holy Spirit 
Baptism  

8 6 25 3 3 2 47 123 

Dedicated Children 4 11 15 11 13 8 62 46 
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NATIONAL SUMMARY 
 
The 2014 totals have been included to facilitate a national comparison with current 
2015 totals. 
We are gradually seeing the evidence of statistics being used as a management tool. 
This is a positive development that the nation will continue to cultivate through 
training and feedback. Without careful statistical analysis at local level there’s a 
danger of using figures that will distort measurement of progress or resource 
allocation and mislead the decision making process.  
 
1. Leadership: The totals have continued to decrease, 588 (2013); 579 (2014) 572 
(2015). This is partly due to appointment and ordination of Elders being put on hold 
by the National Executive whilst the current leadership is being trained in effective 
leadership and attending UKMFCC.  
  
2. Membership: There is a generalized increase in all ministries. The overall total 
increased by 129 from 2014, though 26 less than increase from 2013 to 2014.  
 
3. Activities:  
144 new converts were reported against a total membership increase of 129.  
The very low totals in water and Holy Spirit baptisms compared to 2014 can only be 
attributed to inaccurate reporting.  
Every province will continue to be assisted in appreciating the power of collecting 
reliable statistics and analysis, so as to quickly identify and correct any misleading 
information being obtained.  
.  
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 BISHOP’S REPORT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Bishop’s Rotations 
 
The visited all the following Provinces: - 
North London Province: July, 2015 
Yorkshire Province:  August, 2015  
Midlands Province:  September, 2015 
North West Province:  Was scheduled for October 2015 
but did not materialise as both of us then went on missionary 
work, Dr Mabel to Canada, Bishop JDK to Argentina. It was 
then moved to January, 2016. 
South London Province: November, 2015 (Dr Mabel only) 
Scotland Province:  December, 2015 (Dr Mabel only) 
 
The Bishops used the month allocated to each province as the 
circumstances dictated. Some only needed the Bishops for two 
weekends, some the whole month. 

 
 

During these rotations we saw the power of visiting individuals in their homes and how the 
visits transformed their lives. Where Overseers organized visits to individual Assemblies, 
these Assemblies were so revived and they were very grateful to their Overseers for 
organising these visits. 
We are very grateful to the National Administrator (Rev Mishael Nyambo) for organising these 
rotations, and to the Overseers for making them possible through their Regional Pastors. 
Indeed just as the saints are already looking forward to the 2016 rotations, we also eagerly 
await the same. 
Reports were received that lives had been transformed, that Assemblies and Regions had 
been revived, and Provinces encouraged. 
 
Home Talents 
 
We are very grateful to our father the Apostle and Servant of God, Apostle Professor E.H.Guti, 
for declaring Home Talents for 2014 and 2015. In the United Kingdom we saw great 
enthusiasm amongst the saints as they eagerly worked for their families, raising large amounts 
of money for their own projects. This has left many families at a good position ready for the 
2016 ZEGU MIRACLE TALENTS which many are eagerly waiting for. In actual fact, they have 
already started, as they were launched at the last National Council of 2015, on Saturday, 21st 
November, 2015. 
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On the Mission Field 
 
It was with great joy that the Church in Buenos Aires, Argentina, was registered on 7th 
October and signed for the Documents (Registration Certificate) on Wednesday, 15th 
October, 2015. This brought much joy among the saints in the United Kingdom, who had 
been praying for this Registration. Glory to the God of our father, His Servant Apostle Prof. 
E.H. Guti, and our mother Apostle Dr. Eunor Guti for their prayers concerning the 
Registration of the Church in Argentina. 
We join together to give glory to the God of our father for the way He used His Servant and 
Handmaid, Apostles Prof. E.H. Guti and Dr. Eunor Guti, to start new Churches in Boston, 
Massachusetts, U.S.A; Grand Cayman Island, Jamaica and The Dominican Republic (Santo 
Domingo). We thank the God of our father, how these Churches are growing, as the saints 
continue to pray for them. 
 
2016 ZEGU Miracle Talents 
We are all excited and looking forward to working these Talents since they have already 
been launched (21/11/2015). May the Lord God of Ezekiel cause us all to be faithful and 
avail ourselves to work together to His Praise and Glory.  
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 PROVINCIAL REPORTS 
 

Midlands Province 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
                                                                                                  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Overseers Oscar & Cecilia Zezani EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The grace of God continued to abound and we are excited that a new assembly was born 
in Mansfield which now has 31 committed members. There are powerful testimonies 
through the working of Home Talents, people who managed to build houses and start 
businesses; those who were enslaved by credit cards paying them off and are now free. 
Despite the challenges of venue and work patterns, believers across the province 
continued to meet for prayer on Mondays and Fridays. Regions managed to hold 
conventions and conferences, i.e. Ten Days, Easter, Church Anniversary and the June 
Prayer Conventions for the first time. Attendance was awesome and we saw the hand of 
God. Deliverance and healing services were effectively conducted in all regions when 
Evangelist Dr Ezekiel (Jr) and Pastor Carol graced our province during their tour of duty in 
the nation. God used him mightily and a child who was unable to walk for two years was 
healed in Nottingham Region.                                                                                                                 
We also conducted revivals in our Province and saw the hand of God when 3 people were 
granted their immigration status following years of refusal. One woman received a miracle 
and delivered a bouncing baby girl naturally the very night she was prayed for when she 
was overdue and was scheduled to deliver by Caesarean Section.                                           
Regional Child Evangelism conferences were held and 20 children received Christ. We 
also had our annual Young Generation conference in Wales, where young people were 
delivered from demonic attacks and speakers took time counselling and equipping the 
young people with the word of God. The Youth Ministry of Wolverhampton, Leicestershire 
and Birmingham held worship nights that saw many being delivered and 16 youth receiving 
Christ as their personal savior. Single Women also had a powerful worship night, where 
God healed and delivered five women from spiritual husband attacks. Go Quickly and Tell 
had a powerful prayer retreat which was attended by 150 women, with a massive 
deliverance and mighty move of the Holy Ghost. Men of Integrity held three meetings and 
also a power packed retreat in Wales. A FAMB fun day was held in Coventry, attended by 
133 parents and children. It was a wonderful time for families as they played games and 
engaged in activities together. Girls held a powerful conference in October, attended by 60.                                                                                                                                               
We are very excited to report an average increase in tithes by 47% which can only be the 
doing of the Lord. We thank the God of our Father that in Leicestershire we now have a 
building that has been leased for 25 years, enabling the church to freely conduct services 
without disruptions and limitations 24 hours a day.      
By continued grace and mercies of the God of our father Ezekiel Guti, we are believing for 
more souls to come to Christ and the growth of our finances in 2016.  
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PRAYER: Monday & Fridays prayer 
meetings are being held across the 
province at assembly and regional levels 
with attendance affected by varying working 
patterns, especially Fridays. All Monday 
free will offering is directed towards 
Missions. Some regions faced venue 
challenges.  
 
PCs:  4 meetings were held and the major 
highlights were Pastor’s Deeper Life 
feedback, Missions, teaching on Guidance, 
Rules & Policy and Home Talents. 
 
TEN DAYS PRAYER CONVENTIONS: 
Regions planned and organised well for 
their prayer days and prayer convention, for 
the church to enter into 2015 and walk in 
their inheritance, practicing the kingdom. 
Every region had guest speakers who were 
mightily used of God in deliverance, healing 
and the word of knowledge and an increase 
in attendance reported during prayer 
convention.  
 
YOUTH EASTER CONVENTIONS:  This 
year the Youth held their own convention in 
Wales. The attendance was high, overall it 
was a great success and the church 
experienced a great move of the Holy Spirit, 
with testimonies of breakthroughs, 
deliverance and healing. They had many 
teachers of the word from the Youth, 
Advisors and their Youth Pastors, the main 
speaker being Student Pastor Tapiwa 
Ziswa who preached on forgiveness. There 
was an opportunity for deep bible studies in 
the mornings as the delegates were in 
camp for the conference.   
 
ANNIVERSARY CELEBRATIONS: All 
Regions celebrated the founding of the 
church as well as the life of the founder the 
Servant and Apostle of God who turned 92 
this year.  
.  
 
 

The celebrations included the reading of 
the history, dramas, choirs, testimonies, 
cakes cutting, food and singing. 
Birmingham Region organised a march on 
the last day of the celebration. 
 
ELDERS’ & DEACONS’ PRAYER 
CONVENTIONS: Prayers for Elders and 
Deacons were held under Birmingham/ 
Wolverhampton Zone and 
Leicestershire/Nottingham/Northampton 
Zone.  A high attendance of leaders had a 
great opportunity to pray together in one 
accord, pouring their hearts to God with no 
prayer list according to the letter from our 
father Dr EH Guti and received life 
changing teachings and great move of the 
Holy Spirit witnessed. Great deliverance 
took place, many people poured out their 
hearts and received counselling. Both 
zones elected Zonal Organising 
Committees to administer the continuity of 
their future meetings, seminars, prayers 
and planning of activities.  
 
BELIEVERS PRAYER CONVENTIONS: 
All regions held conventions. There was 
more of prayer and teachings, which 
revived, recharged and refreshed the 
church. Deliverance and healing took 
place across the province.  
 
DELIVERANCE AND HEALING 
SERVICES: Wolverhampton Region held 
4 evenings (Wednesday to Saturday) 
healing and miracles services which 
attracted a huge attendance. Transforming 
teachings were delivered, several people 
delivered from demonic oppression and 
the sick healed from sickness and disease. 
A mighty move of the Holy Spirit was 
witnessed on the last day, with many being 
refilled and slain in the Holy Ghost. Many 
testimonies followed, how people’s lives 
had been transformed and hope restored. 
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HOME TALENTS: The God of our father 
continues to transform people’s lives, with 
registration of business and also 
establishment of operational businesses 
like health care and recruitment. Every 
Sunday was a Home Talents Big Day and 
saints encouraged to buy land where ever 
they can. Much celebration was held across 
the province and people received their hard 
earned saved money with much joy. 
 
CHILD EVANGELISM: A well-attended 
conference was hosted by Nottingham 
Region and the children actively involved in 
the running of the conference as hosts, 
ushers, praise and worshippers, musicians, 
dancers and preachers. The speakers were 
mightily used by God and the messages 
life-changing. The Parents Teachers 
Association (PTA) did a sterling job 
planning and running the conference with 
no area of lack. A total of 20 children 
received Christ as their personal saviour 
and all ministered to the speakers with gifts.  
Birmingham Region held a parents awareness 
conference in March. Children and parents 
were helped with eye opening teachings on 
what our children are exposed to in this nation. 
Leicestershire Region launched a ‘Running to 
Win’ course and the first session attended by 
officials from Braunstone Police Station and 
Leicester University which made it extra special. 
 

YOUNG GENERATION: 53 children and 11 
teachers attended its second annual 
conference at a purpose built Christian 
campsite. Teachings included salvation, 
practicing the Kingdom of God, right 
christian living and education in a global 
world. Many children were delivered from all 
kinds of spirits that included lesbianism and 
pornography. Over 20 children were 
baptised by the Holy Spirit and spoke in 
tongues on the Sunday. Glory be unto God. 

YOUTH: Birmingham Region youth, the 
“Christ-Like Generation” hosted a concert in 
November. 400 people attended from all 
over the country and 16 young people got 
saved. They raised over £3,000.00, 
ploughed back into the Youth Ministry 
coffers and some to Missions. 4 youths who 
had left the ministry came back after the 
event. Their main activities target the 
Greater Birmingham Universities, the City 
Centre & outreach at Coventry University. 
The region have held many events such as 
worship nights, movie nights, fellowships, 
leader’s workshops, leadership all night 
prayers and many other that aim at bringing 
more young people to Christ. They are a 
strong region and will continue to hold youth 
services such as all night prayers, business 
fellowships and outreach services.  
Wolverhampton Region Youth are Born 
Again Believers (BAB) and growing. They 
held their outreach concert in August 
themed “Arise and Shine”. Leicester Youth 
are “Addicted to Jesus” and meeting 
regularly every month for fellowships, 
prayer and services. They hosted 2 worship 
nights attended by 100 people from all over 
the province. They are strong and 
increasing in number, had a prayer 
convention at the end of January and were 
revived by a wave of the Holy Spirit.  God is 
faithful as the youth had continued meeting 
for prayer on Fridays even after the 10 days 
ended. 
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GIRLS FELLOWSHIP: They had their first 
provincial conference in October attended 
by 60 girls with mightily used speakers. 
 
GO QUICKLY & TELL: 12 women attended 
Today's Woman in Zimbabwe and brought 
back life giving testimonies of how their 
lives were changed by the Word and 
prayer. More women were inspired to 
attend future conferences. 60 women 
attended a Big Saturday in March with a 
powerful speaker. 2 Big Tuesdays were 
held and we were privileged to have Pastor 
Carol Guti who encouraged us to stay in the 
word of God, to work with our hands as we 
work Home Talents.  She also encouraged 
the ladies to continue praying for the 
Servant and Apostles of Jesus, Prof E.H 
and Dr. Eunor Guti. The following Big 
Tuesday, Dr Mabel Samasuwo also taught 
about deeper intercession, specifically 
pertaining to praying for the Apostles Prof 
Ezekiel & Dr. Eunor Guti.  
The ladies also went to Wales on a prayer 
retreat with powerful teachings, deliverance 
and counselling taking place throughout the 
retreat. A great move of the Holy Spirit was 
experienced on Sunday so much that some 
people were not laid hands on but they just 
bubbled in tongues, laughed in the spirit. 
We also had a powerful Business 
Empowerment session, where women were 
encouraged to start businesses. Many 
women were delivered from bitterness, 
unforgiveness, gossip, lying and many other 
spirits. Last year 80 women attended and 
this year the attendance was 150 women!! 
We give glory to God. 
 

MEN OF INTEGRITY:   The ministry has 
been vibrant with 36 men attending a prayer 
retreat in Wales. There were teachings, 
prayer, and deliverance as well as fellowship 
activities with many powerful speakers. The 
men also arranged a recreational family fun 
outing attended by 40 people. In August a 
men’s regional mega-service was attended 
by 22 men, the bbq fellowship attracted men 
who do not worship in our church and men 
were taught the Word of God and their role in 
the home. The finance coffers are healthy 
and we have managed to plan 2 events from 
these funds as well as paying a deposit to 
secure venue for the 2016 men’s conference. 
We thank God and are planning for a Big 
Sunday and all night prayer in early 2016. 
 
SINGLE WOMEN: There are 32 active single 
women who continued their fast for the whole 
January seeking the face of the Lord. This 
ended with a Holy Spirit filled all night prayer 
with the Overseers. 47 ladies had a life 
changing worship night in June to Worship 
the Lord with their children. A successful 
single ladies conference was held, 
ministered to by the Bishops and National 
Umbrellas. We pray that more of the single 
women will understand the power of 
interceding for the man of God. 
 
FAMB: 133 parents and children attended 
the Family Fun Day in Coventry. It was a day 
filled with fun as families had games, 
fellowship and food. There were competitive 
games and winners received awards.  
 
COUPLES: This year the couple organised 
Valentine’s Day dinners and activities.  We 
pray for more couples fellowships next year. 
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North London Province 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MAJOR HIGHLIGHTS: Some assemblies 
who were struggling to meet for home cell 
groups have managed to start, but others 
still facing challenges. Many students have 
been enrolled into UKMFCC Bible School 
and are excited, looking forward to their 
graduation in 2016. 
 
HOME TALENTS:  Our Overseers and 
Pastors worked very hard during the year, 
equipping saints with God’s word on how to 
develop a Godly character, walking in our 
inheritance, practising the kingdom of God. 
They have also encouraged people to start 
their own businesses and all those who 
obeyed have had their lives transformed 
tremendously. A number of people have 
started their own businesses, some have 
bought houses and others have worked and 
accumulated a lot of money. They are now 
testifying the goodness of the God of 
ZAOGA, Forward in Faith. Home Talents 
were celebrated at regions and assemblies 
 
PC’s:  Bishops attended one of the PCs 
and Big Sunday where God used them in 
an extraordinary way, to empower His 
people through the Word. The National 
Administrator M & L Nyambo attended the 
September PC and were used mightily. 
 
OTHER CONFERENCES: 10 days prayers 
and conventions were awesome. 

Blessed Region was privileged to have 
Evangelist E.J and Pastor Carol Guti for 
their anniversary, one of its own kind. The 
spirit of God moved in a mighty way, people 
receiving their deliverance and healing, and 
the speakers taught on effective leadership. 
Glory be to God. Shiloh Region was also 
blessed with the teachings rom the Bishops, 
Pastor Chibwana in Wales Region, Pastors 
A & A Mushango in Belfast. We thank God 
for using all the speakers in a mighty way.  
 

EASTER CONFERENCE: All the Regions  
had successful Easter conferences. Seven 
people gave their lives to Christ.  
 

PRAYER CONVENTIONS: Blessed Region 
had a combined powerful conference for 
Elders and Deacons with the Overseers. 
The other regions were also equipped as 
the speakers were used by God. 
 

MINISTRY ACTIVITIES: Child evangelism 
and Young Generation are active in some 
regions and others continue to face 
challenges in finding committed teachers. 
We are requesting for prayers for God to 
supply venues and teachers for our 
children. We are encouraged to see Young 
Generation taking part in praise and 
worship, which we believe will cause them 
to look forward to coming to church, 
because of having something to do in 
church. 
 

DELIVERANCE SESSIONS 
We were privileged and know God remembered us by 
sending Evangelist Dr. E.J. and Pastor Carol Guti who 
ministered in every region in a mighty way.  Many 
miracles took place as people were healed and 
delivered. Other sessions included Dr. Mukanga from 
Zimbabwe at the Home Talents Conference in August 
and a crusade in Northern Ireland in October, all with 
demonstration of the power of the Kingdom of God. 

Overseers 
Dr Jonathan & Greater Chikwawawa 
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YOUTH: The highlight of the year was the 
Youth Big Sunday with the Overseers, 
where they were inspired by his preaching 
and teaching to pursue their goals and trust 
God.  In February, the youth accompanied 
the Youth Pastor to Belgium. They 
witnessed the challenges brought by 
language, different laws and the need for 
finances but came back with a greater 
burden for souls. All the regions each 
hosted a get together, where mighty 
speakers equipped them about the right 
way to marry in this church and living a holy 
life. We give glory to God for a number of 
youth who got married in church, during the 
months of July, August and September this 
year. They organised, financed and 
managed a power packed Easter 
conference. Many youths were delivered 
from generational bondage, curses and 
other unclean spirits. The desire is to have 
youth services operating at assembly level, 
but this has been a challenge due to 
smaller numbers. In Blessed Region, the 
youth had an all-night prayer, and indeed, 
we thank God for such a commitment from 
our children. Many youth worked Home 
Talents and looking forward to working 
ZEGU talents. Our Youth continue to do the 
work of God in our regions although they 
still have to understand the importance of 
tithing.   
Prayer request:  Please pray for our youth 
to be protected from sin which is disguised 
in technology and first world advancement.  
 

GO QUICKLY & TELL: A prayer retreat 
was hosted by Overseer Greater 
Chikwawawa in Cambridge, from 24th - 
26th of July, with Dr Mabel Samasuwo as 
guest speaker. There was a mighty move of 
the spirit of God experienced by most 
women who were in attendance and they 
were delivered from the spirit of bitterness. 
Another prayer retreat was held in South 
Wales, from 4 to 6 December 2015, again 
the God of our father revealed himself to  

the ladies, including some from other 
denominations.  Deliverance took place, the 
teachings received were amazing. We thank 
God for using Pastor Pricilla Gono during 
deliverance session and on ministering the 
holy Ghost, praise be to God who also used 
our Pastor Annie Mushango to teach woman 
on how to pray for the man of God. God was 
also faithful at this retreat, using Pastor 
Mhlanga and Pastor Emily Marango who both 
empowered women on working ZEGU 
Talents.  Some of our Elders were also used 
mightily in encouraging other women to work 
talents by their testimonial preaching. 
Everyone who attended this retreat is now 
geared up to work ZEGU talents.  The 
women raised a lot of money for thanks 
giving and for ZEGU Talents. Women 
continue to meet every Tuesday at their 
respective assemblies praying for the Servant 
& Apostle and the work of God. 
 
SINGLE WOMEN: There was a well-attended 
Provincial Big Sunday, an all-night prayer in 
March and a Christmas dinner in November, 
also attended by umbrellas Elders Joseph 
and Mary Piti. Overseer J. Chikwawawa 
spoke and encouraged them in the Word of 
God. We are still facing challenges as some 
single women have not understood the 
benefit of attending the single women 
services and events. 
 

COUPLES: Ministry is functional at regional 
level.  Wales and Bristol are active with a 
planned weekend away. Wales’s Region Men 
of Integrity meet for breakfast on Saturdays, 
where they invite different speakers. Men of 
Integrity in Ireland meet on Saturdays for 
football match. 
 

General Remarks: 2015 has been a 
peaceful year, with many believers having 
new jobs, promotions and 9 weddings. 
Please pray for our Couples and Men of 
Integrity ministries to arise and take their 
positions. 
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HOME TALENTS: We thank the God of our Father 
who gave us grace to work home talents. Through 
teachings and encouragement during big days, we 
saw buying of houses, stands in Zimbabwe and in 
the UK, as well as starting new businesses by 
many. The grand finale was the celebrations on the 
15th of November 2015.    
 
PROVINCIAL EASTER FAMILY CONVENTION: 
The Youth did a splendid job in hosting the Easter 
Family Convention registering the highest 
attendance of 210 people. God used the speakers 
mightily, Dr D & F Simango, Overseers L & K 
Vheremu in the areas of deliverance and faith. It 
was a true family gathering where everyone took 
part as Youth speakers also ministered the Word of 
God with power.  
 

PCs: 4 meetings were held and notable items are 
the encouragement of the province to have a desire 
for soul winning through Evangelism. The Youth 
have also been alerted to include outreach activities 
in their programmes. 
 

PROVINCIAL INSTRUMENTS:  A massive project 
spearheaded by the Praise and Worship Team to 
buy a full kit of Provincial instruments was started. 
And just over £2000.00 raised. 2 Speakers, 5 
Microphones, Codes and Stands have already 
been purchased. 
 

ANNIVERSARY CELEBRATIONS: The 55th 
Anniversary celebrations were held regionally, with 
drama items from the Youth and numerous 
testimonies as major highlights. Activities and the 
message of the day was “Knowing the History of 
Our Church”.  
 

EVANGELIST DR EZEKIEL 
JUNIOR VISIT:  We give glory to 
God for grace to host Evangelist Dr 
EJ and Pastor Caroline Guti for one 
week. Two ladies’ meetings with 
Pastor Carol attracted 25 and 48 
respectively. Leaders were privileged 
to have a service with them and be 
encouraged to read Baba's books, 
then counselled and prayed for 
individually. A certain lawyer who is 
not a FIFM member drove from very 
far to have the opportunity to be 
counselled and prayed for by the 
evangelist. We give glory to God.  
The Youths also had a power packed 
service, how to have a personal 
vision and obeying parents, using 
Ephesians 6:1-3 and his own 
personal testimony. Deliverance was 
ministered to the young people. 
During evening services and final Big 
Sunday, we saw the hand of God in 
a mighty way in the preaching of the 
word by Dr EJ and instant healing 
and deliverance of many, e.g. 
removal of breast lump and fibroids, 
evil spirits and spirits of depression, 
migraine headache. Parents 
struggling with teenagers were 
prayed for and people didn't want to 
go to their homes because of the 
sweet spirit of the Lord.  
 

Overseers Lawrence & Knowledge 
Vheremu 

We thank the God of our father Dr Ezekiel Guti for 
giving us Overseers Knowledge and Lawrence 
Vheremu, presented to us on 4th April 2015 by 
Bishop Dr JDK Samasuwo.      

. 
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FELLOWSHIPS: They were initiated by the Overseers and are 
ongoing successfully, for Pastor on Friday and for chairing elders. 
The chairing elders have been invited a few times to join the 
Pastors for their Friday prayers.  
 
PROVINCIAL FINANCE TRAINING: This was held at our 
Provincial offices on 3rd October 2015, conducted by the national 
finance team. It was a success though attendance was not as 
expected and thank God for a word of encouragement at the end 
by the Overseer. 
 
DEACONS TRAINING:  Deacons were gathered on 31st October 
2015 to be trained and equipped on their roles, faithfulness in 
tithes and offerings, as well as reading Baba’s books which will 
ground them in the ministry. At the end they wrote a test and we 
thank God that most of them did well.  
 
PCs: At the last PC of the year Administrator and Pastor L 
Nyambo encouraged the leaders to seek righteousness, to seek 
God not money as we go into working ZEGU talents in 2016, to 
stay in the vision of this church, and not to just wait for the 
blessings of God which are in the vision. The leaders are excited 
about ZEGU Talents and believe God for a miracle.  
 
CHILD EVANGELISM:  The register currently has 133 members. 
The ministry is performing very well with a steady increase in the 
number of children attending services. The ODCF (Orphans and 
Destitute Charity Fund) was launched and the CE Magazine is 
still being published and distributed within Province and beyond, 
sold at a donation cost of £5.   
 
YOUNG GENERATION:  a Miracle Big Sunday was held on 
Sunday 19th July with the Overseers and more activities planned 
for Young Generation in 2016.  
 

JUNE PRAYER 
CONVENTIONS: The 
Elders and Deacons 
were combined and 
the hand of God 
experienced in a 
mighty way. There was 
intense prayer at the 
Believers Conventions, 
with a great move of 
the Holy Spirit, 
followed by 
repentance, 
confession, worship, 
thanksgiving, healing 
and deliverance.  
 
LEADERSHIP 
SEMINAR:  Was held 
on 11th July for 40 
leaders, themed 
“Gilgal”, for the 
province to renew the 
Kingdom with fresh 
anointing. Workshops 
were held separately 
for Elders, Deacons 
and Head of 
Departments, to be 
equipped and anointed 
to excel in their various 
callings in the 
Kingdom.   

YOUTH: Pastors I & E Chipfatsura were appointed Youth Pastors. The Youth Ministry is 
functional and they successfully hosted the Easter Family Conventions as well as holding a 
Youth Big Sunday and fellowship on 26th July attended by 42 youths. They successfully 
hosted the 3 day Youth Seminar in August with Pastor N. Zisengwe as guest speaker, who 
encouraged and equipped the youth to excel in the Kingdom of God.   
 

GO QUICKLY & TELL:  We thank God for Overseer Mrs Vheremu’s encouragement and 
teaching to the ladies, in all areas including home talents. The August prayer retreat in Wales 
had much deliverance and healing after teachings on opening businesses and working for our 
own families by speakers Overseer Greater Chikwawawa Pastor F. Simango. The ladies have 
managed to have several big Saturdays after being encouraged to pray for the work of God. 
Tuesday prayers continued in assemblies and regions.  
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MEN OF INTEGRITY: A board will soon be elected to encourage activities to start. 
 
SINGLE WOMEN: Prayer meetings have increased greatly and 2 Big Sundays held so far 
by the 10 single ladies, who also organised fellowship and a Christmas party. 
 
COUPLES: Activity has not increased but remains the most improved ministry in the 
Province.  More revival is expected in 2016.  
 
FINANCE:  Income decreased by 6.5% but we continue to believe God for a change in 
2016. 
 
MAJOR BREAKTHROUGHS:  We thank God for the granting of immigration status for 
some Youth members and the miraculous recovery of Elder B. Muswe from cancer. 
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
The Overseers W & E Mujuruki arrived on 11th October, under a great commission from the 
Apostle & Servant of God, Prof EH Guti to bring revival and we have seen a huge 
improvement and the impact they have made within the 3 months they have been in the 
province. Through obedience to God, they have introduced a series of strategic measures 
to bring that revival. 
They have introduced Prophetic, Healing and Deliverance sessions held at regional level 
and a total of 13 have been held so far. Although the majority of these sessions were in 
Success Region, we take note of the one that took place in Glasgow Region, which was so 
powerful with a mighty presence and move of the Spirit that changed peoples’ lives.  
The attendance at these sessions has steadily increased from 15 at the beginning to 44 on 

average and we have seen:- 

People being healed from a lot of diseases and delivered from 
generational curses, bad dreams, sleepless nights and demonic 
attacks to mention but a few. 

Many people who had stopped coming to church starting to come 
after hearing about the great acts of God that were taking place 
during these sessions. 

The Overseers are empowering the leadership as they are training 
them on how to conduct deliverance sessions. 

The Overseers have also visited the homes of many believers, praying for them and 
showing them the AGAPE love, which has uplifted believers in Scotland Province. These 
home visitations have been extended to backslidden believers who felt that love and are 
now coming to church which has resulted in increased church attendance. In particular, 
Edinburgh Assembly were they are based, church attendance has risen from an average of 
35 to 75. Glory to God!  
Leadership seminars have been held through regional worker’s platforms, to empower 
leaders on good and effective leadership. They have taught on other topics that are 
important for the church, including the pillars of the church. Their focus on giving has 
resulted in more than 50% increase in tithes and all assemblies now have adequate funds 
to sustain them through free will offerings.  
As we enter into 2016, they are already encouraging the church and Scotland Province has 
started working ZEGU talents and raised a lot of money. The level of zeal and enthusiasm 
is allowing us to believe that our province will excel in working God’s talents.  

 

 Overseers Washington & Evelyn 

Mujuruki 
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HOME TALENTS: Many teachings by 
various speakers throughout the year 
encouraged many individuals to work hard 
for themselves, the majority of the big days 
being held at assembly level. The closing 
celebrations on 5th November appreciated 
many families and individuals for their 
achievements and obedience to the word 
of The Prophet with certificates of 
achievement. Celebration testimonies 
included buying of furniture, buying and 
building of houses in Africa, including a 
youth member who was building a house 
for her parents in Zimbabwe. Many have 
started thriving businesses. There was 
jubilation as people praised God for His 
faithfulness, with many who had saved 
money receiving their cheques. Glory to 
God. 
 
PC MEETINGS: The leaders were 
gathered to receive feedback from the 
Pastors Deeper Life Conference and 
encouragement to walk in unity. In October 
the Bishops Drs JDK & M Samasuwo 
introduced the new Overseers Washington 
& Evelyn Mujuruki.  
 

OTHER CONFERENCES: The year begun 
with the 10 days of prayer and fasting and 
a powerful convention. Over 20 leaders 
attended the March Deeper Life 
Conference. The Easter Conference was 
organised and run by the youth and the 
whole province uplifted as they celebrated 
the death and resurrection Jesus. The May 
Anniversary Celebrations were exciting as 
the church reached 55 years of age and 
the province revived once again 
remembering the things that have allowed 
the church to continue steadfastly to date.   
 
PRAYER CONVENTIONS: The month of 
June was packed with prayer, starting the 
Pastors in this province. The elders and 
deacons had a joint prayer convention, 

with teaching on how to wait upon the Lord. 
Those anticipating something from the Lord 
were prayed for on the Sunday service. The 
believer’s prayer convention was held in 
regions and speakers used by God in a 
mighty way. On Sunday there was word of 
prophesy as the Holy Spirit moved mightily. 
 
EVENTS: From the 8th to 14th June, we 
hosted Evangelist Ezekiel Junior & Pastor 
Caroline with services held in each of the two 
regions, a big Saturday for ladies on 13th and 
Big Sunday to conclude the week. Many 
people attended the Sunday service the 
province lifted to a higher through 
deliverance.  It was a great blessing to be 
ministered to as individuals by Dr EJ and 
Pastor Carol Guti.  
  
MINISTRY ACTIVITIES: There we no CE or 
YG services though regular Sunday school 
classes are held in most assemblies. The 
Youth organized the Easter Conference for 
the first time without the financial support of 
the rest of the church and a Youth Committee 
elected. They managed to have a Big 
Sunday, 2 fellowships and attend all national 
youth events. The Couples & Men of Integrity 
ministries were not active in 2015 and are 
praying for a revival in 2016. Single women 
have conference call prayers every Friday at 
midnight to pray.   
 
GO QUICKLY & TELL:  The women had a 
Big Saturday on 13th June with Pastor 
Caroline Guti and were taught on many areas 
including having a good heart and talents. 
The tea party fellowship in Falkirk was 
attended by 50 women and a 2 week prayer 
& fasting was declared in September, 
concluded by 3 days and 3 nights to 
intercede for the Servant & Apostle of God. 
The move of God was overwhelming. 
Tuesday prayers continued in the regions 
and assemblies.  
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Overseers Dr Michael & Dr Bella Kasese 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 

2015 was a wonderful year for us as we had a number of families who joined us from other 

churches and also managing to maintain our membership strength despite general 

migration of all age groups. We saw a lot of our members starting businesses by hearkening 

to the word of home talents from the Servant and Apostle of God. Our province was highest 

in the working of Missions at the beginning of the year; the Go Quickly ministry did well as 

they worked towards the building of the borehole at Bindura, Zimbabwe above working 

home talents. They were also persistent in meeting for prayer. We also managed to 

complete refurbishment of our provincial offices. We are thankful to God for all the progress 

and value mostly the spirit of joy, peace and tranquility that is prevailing in our province.  

 

We did experience some challenges through the economic situation in the nation which 

affected a lot of assemblies especially through increase in rentals and a decline of tithes. 

We managed to overcome by persistent teachings on the benefits of tithing. 

 

We are continuing to look forward to doing the work of God in 2016 with the 

following as our main projections: - 

 Maintain our membership strength 

 Soul winning by all age groups 

 Engaging all ministries and groups in prayer retreats 

 Excelling in the working of ZEGU talents with all saints participating 

 Embark on reaching out to other nationalities especially the indigenous people 

 To encourage all ministries to be active 

 To teach the word as written in the bible scriptures with the additional support 

from the books of the Servant and Apostle of God. 

 To encourage all our leaders to attend UKMFCC bible school 
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SUMMARY OF STATISTICS: In 2015 our 
membership increased by 1.8% as a result of 
new converts and newborn babies. We have 
an increase in the leadership by 2 Elders and 
1 Deacon who came in as transfers. A decline 
in youth numbers has been due to their 
enrolling to other parts of the country for 
university. Water baptism was a priority 
following the Europe Deeper Life conference 
teachings on salvation from the Servant & 
Apostle of God, Professor E.H. Guti. 
 

DELIVERANCE SESSIONS: Evangelist Dr 
Gamuchirai Mutanda who was the guest 
speaker at our September PC and also visited 
East London and Essex and Southbank 
Regions to minister deliverance. Regions 
have reported deliverance sessions during the 
Easter Celebrations, Anniversary 
Celebrations, June Prayer Conventions and 
during the services we held with Evangelist 
Ezekiel Guti Junior and at prayer bands. 
 

UKMFCC BIBLE SCHOOL: There are four 
groups of students who are attending lessons, 
one in Bumper Harvester and East London & 
Essex regions and two in Southbank Region.  
 
BUSINESS SEMINAR: East London & Essex, 
Bumper Harvester and Southbank region held 
empowering business fellowship seminars 
with Elder Matangi as the speaker.  
 
HOME TALENTS:  Big Days across the 
province motivated people to work and 
Talents Conferences took place in all the 
regions. Overseers O. & C. Zezani were 
speakers in East London Region where over 
£60,000 was worked for Home Talents. Many 
people have registered companies and 
people are seeing the hand of God in their 
businesses. Many building projects are 
underway, including farming, egg hatching 
projects, shipping business, healthcare and 
clothing boutiques, in obedience to the vision 
of home talents 

The Overseers taught and encouraged the 
church to obey, work hard in faith, then wait 
to see the results at one of the talents 
conferences in East Anglia.   
 
EVANGELIST DR. E.J GUTI’s VISIT 
All the regions held powerful services with 
the Evangelist and Pastor Carol with 
miracles being witnessed. Their visit left the 
church revived and filled with the spirit of 
joy, after healings, deliverances and 
miracles were witnessed. The Evangelist 
also empowered the leaders through 
teaching on leadership.  
 
10 DAYS PRAYER CONVETIONS: All 
regions had successful prayer conventions 
with different speakers who taught on what 
it is to walk in our inheritance and 
ministered with demonstration of power. 
The Bishops, Drs JDK & Mable Samasuwo 
shared what the God of Ezekiel was doing 
in the mission field in Argentina, which left 
the saints seeing the bigger picture of what 
“Go ye therefore” is all about.  
 
EASTER & CHURCH ANNIVERSARY 
CONFERENCES: All regions held 
successful conferences with Southbank 
Region doing a march down the Sutton High 
Street which attracted some indigenous 
locals to giving their life to Christ.  
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PRAYER CONVENTIONS: The first Elders & 
Deacons conventions were powerful in East 
London and Essex, with servants of God 
mightily used in empowering and repositioning 
the leadership to their rightful positions 
through teachings, great deliverance and 
refilling with the Holy Ghost. Together with the 
Believers' Convention, it was a time of revival 
and grounding the church on principles of 
prayer, the foundation of this Ministry. There is 
a great revival in the province, saints are filled 
with the spirit of prayer, Deacons are on fire 
and taking care of business like being early in 
church, cleaning, ushering and igniting the 
spirit of prayer. There is a sweet spirit in the 
region. 
 

Southbank Region also had powerful prayer 
conventions, with great revival in prayer. 
Saints were refilled with Holy Spirit at the 
Believers’ Convention and the spirit of 
laughter brought breakthroughs to many. Joy 
is in the region and the Elders were left on fire 
to do the work of God after their prayer 
convention. Most families now have registered 
businesses after the powerful teachings on 
working Home Talents. 
 

CHILD EVANGELISM: There’s a strong team 
of Sunday school teachers in the province 
who continue to teach our children through 
dance, drama, poetry and continue to build 
relationships through family friendly activities.  
 

YOUNG GENERATION: There has been a 
revival of this ministry, with a weekend of 
getting together and fellowshipping in East 
Anglia, which they greatly enjoyed and 
planning to have more. Water baptism of 4 
members was witnessed in East London. 
 

GIRLS MINISTRY:  The girls are on fire, are 
active in regional, provincial and national 
events, and participating in the working of 
home talents. Most of them attended their 
Zonal conference. 

 

YOUTH MINISTRY:  The May “Bring a 
Friend Get Together and Concert” went 
well as planned and God favored our 
youth with the Evangelist E.J. Guti as 
their guest speaker. In July they had a 
Big Sunday and a successful Youth Trip 
to Kent in August.  
 
SINGLES MINISTRY: The Provincial Big 
Sunday on 26th July was well attended. It is a 
prayerful ministry, with members who hold 
provincial and national leadership positions. 
Their strength is prayer and giving.  

 
MEN OF INTEGRITY:  East London & 
Essex men meet every first three days of 
the month for prayer, under the guidance 
of their regional Pastors, are strong and 
many have started businesses through 
empowerment received from these 
prayers. Women are testifying of God’s 
goodness as they are seeing God 
transforming the lives of their husbands.  
Southbank region men met on the 30th 
May for a barbecue with Evangelist E.J. 
during which they received powerful 
teachings, after which they went on a 
joyous tour of London with the 
Evangelist. 
 
COUPLES: Had a Provincial Big Sunday 
on 26th July attended by 51 couples and 
testify being greatly helped by the 
teachings received through the guest 
speakers Administrators Mishael and 
Leticia Nyambo. 
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GO QUICKLY & TELL: Tuesday prayer meetings continue in all regions, together Big 
Thursdays and Saturdays respectively. Prayer retreats have become a regular feature and 
on one of them, the ladies were fired up to pray after watching a video of Dr. Eunor Guti 
launching 3 days and nights prayer and fasting for the servant and Apostle of God.  The 
momentum has been gathered for 2016 ZEGU Talents after wrapping up Home Talents. 
Pastor Carol Guti took 45 women to another level in May and over 70 in June at a Big 
Saturday themed “fill my cup”, how a business can be taken from half empty to full when 
working talents.  
The women continue to work towards the Bindura Borehole Project and have pledged over 
£3,000.00 towards this good cause and will continue until there is water at the Cathedral. 
The Provincial Committee actively encourages women to be faithful in paying their 
provincial subscriptions.  
 
4 ladies attended the Today’s Woman Conference in Zimbabwe and came back with 
powerful testimonies that charged many women. The ministry ended the year in style, with 
a Christmas dinner at Dagenham Church on 4/12/2015.  
 
PRAYER: The spirit of prayer is prevailing as evidenced by prayer and fasting 
programmes, Friday prayer bands across the province. This is bringing breakthroughs, 
peace and joy in our province.  
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
We thank the God of Ezekiel who saw us through 2015, a year that we experienced the 
faithfulness of God in a special way. It was the final year of working Home Talents and 
we witnessed the fulfilment of the vision when some believers bought stands, houses 
and others started businesses. 

A lot of saints who used to be spectators became fully involved during seminars, 
conferences and prayer retreats. A great improvement in attendance was witnessed. 
The God of our Father blessed us with a white couple who fellowship at Leeds Assembly 
and are very committed to the work of God. Every Thursday they come to clean the 
church and maintain the grounds by cutting the lawn during summer holidays. We thank 
God for the two families who once left to join other churches and are now back with us. 
All our ministries are fully functional. 

The ZEGU Miracle Talents were launched at the last PC and the atmosphere was 
outstanding. Everyone is geared up to work hard in supporting the work of God and 
Talent Committees were set up. We are all excited about being ushered into another 
year where we are going to do mighty and great things through the grace of the God of 
our Father Ezekiel Guti.  

 

Overseers Big & Nelia 
Chakanyuka 

HOME TALENTS: In this second year 
of working, saints worked towards their 
savings with a lot of effort and 
enthusiasm, the encouragement and 
emphasis having been to bring in cash 
worked, not receipts for household 
items bought. We celebrated on 
Sunday 15th November 2015 and 
rejoiced as there was evidence of 
saints having already started 
businesses which are going strong 

 

PC MEETING: Since the birth of 
Yorkshire Province in 2012, a total of 
16 PC meetings have been held and 
the work growing from strength to 
strength. The Overseers, Pastors, 
Elders and Deacons work together to 
work through and resolve any issues or 
challenges. The last PC of 2015 was on 
5TH December 2015. 
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OTHER CONFERENCES: The ladies held a successful Provincial Prayer Retreat in 
October. Pastor Nelia Chakanyuka also attended the Today’s Woman Conference held in 
Harare. 
 
MINISTRY ACTIVITIES: Men of Integrity are strong, now have their own dedicated prayer 
day on Tuesday evenings and have managed to hold a Men of Integrity Provincial Big 
Sunday. There are strong indications that the men are getting more motivated to be good 
leaders in their families and the church. Ladies continue to meet for Tuesday Prayer 
sessions and Single Women very active both in their ministry and church in general. The 
Youth are very active and held a big event, namely a Worship Night on 21st November 
2015 themed “United In Christ Jesus”. God is good.  
 
FINANCE: The finance team continue to work very hard and stressing the need for all 
leaders to be faithful in their tithing. Much work still needs to be done and team held a 
successful fund-raising initiative to boost the coffers. 
Assets Acquired: We are near the end process as regards purchasing our Church of 
England building. The paperwork still in process and we believe the God of our father EH 
Guti for a miracle. 
 
GENERAL REMARKS: Some saints still experience challenges in tithing and pray that all 
leaders in the province will tithe faithfully as well as experiencing great favor as we work 
ZEGU Talents in 2016. 
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 MINISTERIAL REPORTS 
 

 
Youth For the Nations 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Leadership Team  
National Youth Director: Pastors Enock & Virginia Tigere                                                   
National Youth Chairman: Joe Katsande                                                                                                                    
The National Coordination Committee (includes Board of Advisors): led by Elder Ruzivo 
Chigwende 

 

Youth Prayer 
Conventions                                                                                                                                     
The youth continued 
fasting after the 10 days 
to the end of the month 
as they interceded for 
the Apostles who were 
ministering at the 
Pastors’ Deeper Life 
Conference in 
Zimbabwe. They 
concluded with zonal 
prayer conventions, from 
25th to 27th January 
2013, where mighty 
deliverance was 
reported. 
 
January Youth Prayer 
Conventions:  
These were conducted 
provincially at the end of 
January and the theme 
of the year, with 
emphasis on the theme 
of the year “Walking in 
our Inheritance, 
Practising the Kingdom 
of God”. Mighty 
deliverances, signs and 
wonders were reported 
in the respective 
provinces. 
 

UK National Youth Big Sunday                                                                         
The Sunday after the Europe Deeper Life Conference, the 
Youth had a Big Sunday with the Apostles Professor E. H. Guti 
and Dr. Eunor Guti, where all the Bishops, Overseers, Pastors 
and international delegates who were at the Deeperlife also 
attended. 700 Youth from all over the UK attended, including 
many visitors and young people from other churches, to hear 
the Word from the legendary Apostle Ezekiel Guti. Baba taught 
on self-control and the need to be delivered from pornography 
& other internet addictions. 12 Youths repented.  Many gave 
their lives to Christ and some were in tears!  Evangelist Dr. EJ 
ministered deliverance to over a hundred youths mainly in the 
area of destructive internet activity and bondage to electrical 
gadgets. 
 
The International Youth Seminar:  
A team of 5 UK delegates attended the seminar in Harare, led 
by the National Youth Director, Pastor E Tigere. A feedback 
strategy is currently being worked on which will greatly benefit 
the Youth from the treasure which was imparted at this great 
gathering. 
 
National Youth Field Trips:  
Field trips are being planned for all provinces, with a purpose to 
empower local structures in effective leadership. North West 
Provinces held theirs in September. 
 
National Youth Leadership Seminar:  
It was held in July in Birmingham and attended by 140 youth 
leaders. Teachings were extensively on leadership, the History 
of ZAOGA FIFMI, young people to love the church and the man 
of God. Other topics included were faithful tithing, careers 
development, giving, holiness and organisation, after which 
deliverance was ministered. 
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Youth Easter Conventions: 
These were held in all the provinces and the lives of many changed through speakers 
mightily used of God, although attendance in some provinces could have been better.  
  
Provincial Events:  
Youth services, prayer bands and get togethers, as well as recreational youth activities 
are taking part regularly in most provinces. Scotland youth still need to catch up and 
plans underway to send a team from the National youth office to revive the province.   
  
Missions:  
The passion and drive to support missionary work continues to be encouraged in the 
Youth. Following a team trip to Rome in May 2014, $5000.00 was worked by the youth 
to purchase instruments for the church and a full kit purchased in Rome in August this 
year. The youth are planning another visit to the church in Rome for the official 
presentation. Another trip was made to visit and strengthen the church in Belgium, by a 
team from North London Province together with the Provincial Youth Pastor, Charles 
Marango. The church was greatly supported and encouraged. We are planning a trip to 
Cyprus in 2016.  
 
Developments: 
Many young people are proving to be growing by attending UKMFCC Bible School. 
More are coming into leadership as Elders and Deacons.  
 

PRAYER REQUESTS:  

Many young people are going to universities away from home and need 
prayers for them to be able to remain strong and firm in their faith; to 
refrain from sin and all ungodly activities. 

We want to see our young people mature in Christ and realise their call 
even in ministry. 

Our young people are in need of mentors who will guide them in their 
Christian walk with a deep understanding of their church. 
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“Behold, children are a heritage from the Lord." Psalms 127:3 
 
It is encouraging to note that the Child Evangelism (C.E.) ministry continues to function and 
grow, albeit slowly in all the regions and assemblies. Through our Director Pastor Phyllis 
Burke, almost all provinces now have functional Provincial and Regional Child Evangelism 
Committees. We thank God for a very small team of dedicated and hardworking individuals 
who are making sure that the ministry continues to be visible during all church activities.        
The National Child Evangelism Committee met and agreed that the current committee 
would continue with the work, but do more to build Provincial Committees to become more 
vibrant and active, filtering down to the Regional and Assembly committees. The following 
were also resolved: - 

 All provinces to re-launch the Tin Mission Fund.  

 Conduct provincial and regional training seminars for all teachers.   

 Do more parents’ awareness events across the country on Child Evangelism related 
issues to get the full support of parents and church leaders.  

 Below are the summaries of provincial activities.  
 

Midlands Province 
The CE Board is in place and managed to organise a 
successful Young Generation conference in Wales 
attended by 53 children and 11 teachers. There was a 
mighty move of the Holy Ghost with a massive 
deliverence which lasted until midnight, many children 
delivered from all kinds of spirits including lesbianism 
and pornography.The speakers and Pastors were 
mightily used in ministering this deliverance to our 
children. Glory be unto God. Many issues that are 
troubling today’s young generation children came out 
from the children during the question and asnswer 
session, including sexuality, sexual pervesions and 
pornography. A Holy Spirit session and baptism of 
over 20 children was conducted on the Sunday with 
many chidren receiving the gift of speaking in 
toungues. Glory be unto God.  
Various regional activities are being done. 6 weeks 
Salvation and 6 weeks “Running to Win” programmes 
were held in Leicester, deep teachings on salvation 
and encouraging children to aim at achieving high 
grades (speakers included the local police, school 
teachers, local council official and university officials). 
A Parents Awareness event was held and well 
attended in Nottingham Region.  
The other regions have functional committees and two 
have held events that specifically focused on CE.  

 

North West Province 
There is significant progress; the 
Provincial CE Board is 
functioning and very instrumental 
in establishing regional and 
assembly boards.  
Children active on most Sundays 
at both the assembly and 
regional level. Some assemblies 
meeting with children on 
Saturdays for CE activities 
 
Yorkshire Province 
The CE Board is fully functional 
and have managed to establish 
assembly and regional 
structures.  
The two regions with a total of 10 
assemblies have a total of 127 
children and 15 teachers. 
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South London Province 
The CE Board is in place and active, with regional 
committees who are functioning though affected 
by lack of continuity due to unsuitable venues for 
accommodating CE services. The few dedicated 
teachers are doing the best they can to keep the 
ministry alive.  
 
North London Province 
The CE Board is in place and spearheading CE 
related activities; children meeting and being 
taught in assemblies, mostly on the junior and 
intermediate group levels. Some assemblies don’t 
have teachers for the Young Generation group 
but they are being given opportunities to 
participate during Sunday church activities.   
Though not at provincial level, the Young 
Generation had regional prayer bands and big 
Sundays which were well attended.  
 
Scotland 
There is no functional CE Board as yet but active 
regional committees; appropriate warm venues 
are their main challenge especially in the winter 
season.  
Children are being taught, with two new teachers 
in Edinburgh and programmes being held almost 
every Sunday for 30 minutes.  
One region had a Sunday specifically dedicated 
to CE and big improvements from parents 
supporting the ministry is being seen.  
 
Conclusion  
The CE Ministry is functioning, with notable significant improvements during the year 
though more still needs to be done. Provinces and regions are facing their main challenge 
of continuity, where CE activities still need to be made an integral part of every church 
activity and to have permanent slots on Sunday programmes. We are believing the God of 
our father that in this year of pulling down strongholds, our eyes will be opened to see and 
understand the importance of this ministry.  
We continue to ask for your prayers that God may increase the very few existing teachers 
and for those enthusiastic few to be fully supported and encouraged as opposed to being 
led to drop off from being discouraged by some parents and church leaders.  
We thank the God of our Father Dr E. H. Guti for this vision and continue to pray that true 
disciples of Ezekiel will emerge, who will prophesy, see visions and be mightily used of 
God (Joel 2:28). Our God is able.  
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 GO QUICKLY & TELL 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Go Quickly Ministry continued to excel to greater heights just as our Father 
prophesied a different year in January that 2015. A sense of excitement and 
achievement within the ministry even as the National Office was furnished in 2014 and 
is up and running. This has been a benchmark that has brought a lot of joy and 
anticipation as we look forward to upcoming events and projects. 
 
Intercession 
We agreed as a nation to stand with our 
mother Apostle Eunor Guti in the special 
intercession programme for our Father 
which she mentioned at our Europe 
Deeper Life Conference. Regardless of our 
busy work schedules, the National 
Executive gave guidance on how this kind 
of prayer can be implemented. Provinces 
were allocated two weeks each and 
Midlands managed to cover the first two 
weeks of July. Intercession for the man of 
God and the work of God at large has 
grown to a greater magnitude as ladies do 
an absolute fast for 3 days and 3 nights. 
Other provinces like Midlands doubled their 
attendance from the previous year while 
North London actually did two prayer 
retreats in this same year. Ladies 
continued to meet for Tuesday prayers 
throughout the nation while in some 
provinces like South London, some ladies 
pray over the phone in the early hours 
each day. The spirit of prayer has no 
boundaries and is increasing as evidenced 
by prayer retreats in all the Provinces. 
 
Events 
Many activities took place as we 
hearkened to the word of the great Apostle 
of our time, Prof E.H. Guti at the Pastors’ 
Deeper Life Conference, that 2015 is a 
different year and the church would grow 
thick through teaching. We have therefore 
engaged in teaching the ladies diverse 
subjects and expect to see growth just as 
was prophesied by the man of God. 

 

Yorkshire Province had a modelling 
night which attracted a high attendance. 
A “Young Mothers Event” followed, 
where specific teachings were given 
then a pampering weekend event where 
ladies enjoyed a refreshing spa 
experience with facials, massages, 
steam and sauna rooms, to mention but 
a few. At the end of it all the word was 
preached.                 
 
South London Province had a similar 
weekend break as well and are holding              
successful Ladies Tea meetings. The 
wave is indeed sweeping the nation; 
Midlands had an energizing Zuma dance 
class on one of their Provincial Big 
Saturdays. Such fellowships and events, 
which were presented in different styles 
excited the ladies. The nation benefited 
greatly from Pastor Carol’s teachings 
which were enriching and touched on 
every aspect of a woman. All the 
meetings were fruitful and had good 
turnout 
 
Go Quickly National Event 
The Go Quickly National Board met 
once and have scheduled for a National 
Event which will bring together ladies 
from all over the Nation as it has been a 
while since it was last done. The 
momentum is building as quite a number 
of events have been lined up. 
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Today's Woman Conference 
Over 20 women excluding Pastors attended Today's Woman Conference in Harare. 
The selling of the event entry tickets by every Province attracted a better response and 
many Elders attended. The nation was blessed through powerful feedback by those 
Female Pastors and Elders at the Female Leaders’ Talents launch on 20th November.  
 
Home Talents 
This report will not be complete if we do not mention the game of the season. Through 
Home Talents Conferences and Big Days, the nation has birthed a lot of Lady 
Entrepreneurs. North West Province is particularly proud in this area as their set targets 
at Big Days were doubled or trebled. The vibe is real and the fruits are evident, that 
indeed we now have business ladies who did not only catch the vision of the moment but 
continue to run with it.  
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Introduction 
2015 was a remarkable year for the ministry, with great strides being made in most of the 
provinces, slowly but surely. It was all by the grace of the God of His Servant & Apostle 
Prof EH Guti, who gave him the vision for this ministry in September 1985, making it 30 
years. Having National Umbrellas is surely having a positive impact on the ministry and it 
can only get better and better. 
 
National Activities 
A unique 2-day National Board Seminar was held in February at the National Centre, to 
equip the board members on leadership skills, together with the Umbrellas. Powerful 
teachings were delivered, from resource speakers that included Rev M Nyambo, the 
National Administrator and the National Umbrellas, Overseers B & N Chakanyuka. They 
delivered powerful teachings around the following topics:- 

 Understanding the Vision of the Ministry 

 Duties of Board Members 

 Qualities of an Effective Leader 

 Power of Prayer 

 Working with other Ministries 

Four out of the six provinces were represented, which was indeed a great achievement, 
considering that the aim was to then take the same content to provincial level through 
provincial seminars during the course of the year. 

 
Provincial Activities 
Three provinces actually managed to 
hold powerful seminars as a follow 
up to the National Seminar and those 
who didn’t were able to hold 
Provincial Big Sundays. Mainstream 
activities like prayer, fellowship and 
ministering continued to be held, with 
one province going as far as holding 
a 3-day prayer retreat. The ministry 
continued to be that of strong 
intercession for the Servant and 
Apostle of God as well as the work of 
God. 
Many single ladies faithfully worked 
Home Talents, with many testifying 
great works through working with 
their hands, including buying land 
and building homes back in 
Zimbabwe.  
 

Though by definition there are many single 
women who exist, some of them are still 
reluctant to join the ministry, especially the 
younger ones. God continued to raise mature 
Elders (couples) with a burden to see the 
ministry rebranded, as regional Umbrellas who 
will make it more attractive to the younger 
single ladies by God’s grace.  
We are grateful and excited that some 
provinces wrapped up 2015 in style, by 
organising Christmas dinners, a true sign that 
the ministry is growing to another level and 
better things coming our way. Plans were also 
put in place for ensuring that we become 
financially sound, through encouragement of 
provincial contributions and adhering to the 
standing banking procedures. 
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Through working with Overseers and Umbrellas, provincial boards will ensure that new 
boards are elected for 2016. We are all in agreement that we can only benefit from a 
ministry that is led by people who are mature, faithful stewards with passion and a burden 
for the ministry, as it is only such people who can steer the ministry to catch the vision as 
was given to the Servant and Apostle of God. 
 

2016 Plans 
On the basis of the success of the first national seminar for board members, we 
desire that it be an annual event, to also include a separate session for Umbrellas. 
The coming year is a unique year for ZEGU talents and will require wise 
consultation with Provincial Overseers, from where all ministries get the vision and 
support for all provincial activities.   
Activities like worship nights, get together fellowships and social outings that 
include our children must remain high on our agenda if the ministry is to attract 
young single ladies who may be still unsure where they belong.  
 

We thank the God of Ezekiel for grace and favour.  
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Motto: “Go ye therefore and make disciples of all nations….” Matthew 28:19 (NKJV) 
Introduction 
United Kingdom continued to find favour before the God of our father, the Apostle and 
Servant, Dr EH Guti and chief missionary of this ministry. The support of the Great 
Commission for lost souls was awesome and took our father beyond many borders. It is 
our hope and prayer that the same spirit that is in our father to ‘go ye therefore’ will 
continue to grow so that this great vision can march on, as “the harvest is still 
plentiful….” Matthew 9:37 (NKJV).  
 
Income 
Individuals and Assemblies continued to support Missions Fund through cash and 
standing orders. With much prayer the nation committed itself to a special project “It’s All 
About Missions” from January to March. We can only testify that that the amount of 
£335,265.00 raised sacrificially was the doing of the Lord and give all the glory to Him. 
The total income for the year including contributions by Provinces (3% of tithes) was 
£474,000.00. God has remained faithful to His Apostle and Servant that even after that 3 
months period, the number of people with the burden for this vision has continued to 
increase as evidenced by the increase in standing orders 

Expenditure 
The total for the year was 
£376,000.00 and was in the 
following:- 
1. Supporting Nations 

 Angola 

 Argentina 

 Belgium 

 Belize 

 Brazil 

 Car 

 Cuba 

 Cyprus 

 Ezekiel TV 

 Germany 

 Netherlands 

 Philippines 

 Portugal 

 Rome (Italy) 

 Russia 

 Sweden  

 

2. New Nations 

 Boston (USA) 

 Cayman Islands 

 Dominican Republic 

 Jamaica 
Although the expenses varied by nation according to 
need and prevailing circumstances, the main 
expenditure areas included:- 

 Mission House rentals, bills and furnishings 

 Purchase of church vehicles 

 Hall Hiring 

 Ground transport and travel 

 Hotel Accommodation 

 Air fares 

 Food & Upkeep 

 Visas 

 Crusade Expenses (Jamaica) 

 Church Registration 
Despite such an intensive outreach programme, the 
Missions Office still remained with surplus funds 
amounting £98,000.00. The God of our father is 
gracious; the earth and its fullness belong to Him, so 
does the silver and gold. May He take all the glory!  
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Highlights 

 Argentina – After years of persistent fervent prayer and supplication, the church was 

finally registered. 

 Cayman Islands – After successful planting of the FIFM seed, we have a Mission 

House and church vehicle. 

 Jamaica – The church was launched through a powerful crusade; we have a Mission 

House and a church vehicle. 

 Dominican Republic – many souls coming to Christ and we also have a Mission 

House and a church vehicle. 

 Pakistan – great work is being done in order to register the church there. 

 Schengen – through the designated pastor for region, the churches are developing 

and enjoying the God of Ezekiel. Believers from Italy, Switzerland, France and 

Belgium convened in Netherlands for their first Christmas party on 18th December 

2015 and have just had a Prayer Convention in Belgium. 

 
Daniel 12:3  – “Those who are wise shall shine like the brightness of the firmament 
and those who turn many to righteousness, like the stars forever and forever”. 
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Opening Remarks 
This report is on this year’s progress 
and developments on the project to 
build the National Centre in 
Birmingham. We thank the God of 
our father for the progress made 
through the year 2015, particularly 
that construction work on the ground 
has actually started. Praise be to 
God for thus far He has brought us.  
 

Building Committee 
The Committee has several 
members within it but a small sub-
committee was selected to oversee 
the planning and design stages of 
the project. This sub-committee has 
continued to be in place throughout 
2015, dealing with matters as the 
construction phase has started. The 
Sub-committee is chaired by Elder G 
Tegede and the members are Elder 
M Masimbarasi, Deacon N 
Dhumisani, Mr B Mbirimi, Elder M 
Mandisodza, Elder R Bevan, and the 
National Administrator Rev M 
Nyambo.  
 
Meetings 
Several internal meetings were held 
during the year at the National 
Centre, with weekly or bi-weekly 
update teleconference calls on 
Tuesday evenings by the sub-
committee. There have also been a 
number of meetings with the 
professional companies that have 
been engaged to design and 
construct the National Centre. These 
meetings are generally held on a 
monthly basis. 
 

Project Delivery Strategy 
We have divided the project up into a number 
of phases as follows:- 
 
Phase 1 – Construction of Main Auditorium 

 Demolition of existing structure  
 Foundation Construction for main 

auditorium 
 Drainage construction 
 Steelwork, Wall cladding and roofing  
 Floor Slab Construction 
 At the end of Phase 1 the main 

auditorium will be weather proof but 
will not have the internal fittings and 
partitions. 

 
Phase 2 – Partitioning & Services Fitting 

 Internal brickwork and room 
partitioning 

 Install Lighting, Heating & Ventilation  
 Install plumbing 
 Install Audio & Visual Equipment 
 Complete other internal fittings & 

fixtures  
 
Phase 3 – Local Church & Community Centre 

 Strengthen & Refurbish existing 
structure 

 Refurbish walls 
 Install new roof sheets 
 Floor slab 
 Install heating, ventilation, lighting & 

plumbing 
 
Phase 4 – Landscaping 

 Complete hard standing slab in parking 
areas 

 Paint parking bays 
 External site finishing and other 

landscaping 

 

 



 

 

38 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Progress Update 
Some of the progress that we made through the year has been as follows:- 
1. December 2014 - we obtained revised planning permission for the new design to keep 

an existing building for use as a local church and community centre.  
2. March 2015 - we had enough design drawings completed to enable us to invite tenders 

from building contractors to do the work. 
3. March to April 2015 - obtained quotations for the two options that we were considering, 

i.e. whether to refurbish the existing structure or to demolish it and re-build. 
4. April 2015 - we made the decision to demolish the existing structure and re-build. This 

was based on the quotations that we obtained which showed that it would be cheaper 
to re-build instead of refurbish. 

5. May 2015 – we started some preliminary work on site which was to remove some 
asbestos from site 

6. June 2015 – Appointed a Construction Management Company to oversee the 
construction phase. 

7. June 2015 - Purchased Site Fencing 
8. June 2015 – Demolition of Existing Structure started 
9. July 2015 – Demolish of the existing structure was completed 
10. August 2015 – Foundation Piles Completed 
11. October 2015 – Foundation ground beams completed. 
12. December 2015 – Drainage pipes installed and drainage tanks installed. 
13. The Contract for the Steelwork construction has also been awarded. 
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Looking Ahead 
The foundation work has now been completed and are looking forward to the following 
programme of works on site for Phase 1: 
 

 January 2016 Steel Fabrication starts in the factory 
 March 2016 – Steelwork erection on site. 
 May/June – Installation of wall cladding and roofing 
 July/August 2016 – Completion of Phase 1. 

 
Financial Update 
As of 17th November 2015 the total expenditure to date was £779,034.00. 
Forecast for completion of Phase 1 is £1,321,930.00 
We have not yet obtained firm quotations for Phases 2, 3 and 4 but out estimate is that the 
total cost of the project will be around £3.1million excluding VAT. 
 
Closing Remarks 
We thank God for all the progress that has been made this year and are also thankful that 
He took us over the obstacles that were in the way. We request that you continue to pray for 
us to work on this project with wisdom that comes from God and that God may continue to 
reveal and lead us to companies and professionals that will work on this project with a true 
understanding of our requirements. 
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Financial Overview  
We thank the God of our father Ezekiel, guidance and 
prayers from our father that enabled and strengthened the 
National Finance Board composed of Elder Michael 
Masimbarasi (Chairman), Elder Ronald Bevan (Deputy 
Chairman), Elder Mercy Masiye, Elder Memory Mandisodza 
(Finance Director) and Elder Gwen Kanyangu (National 
General Secretary) to plan and manage the finances of the 
Ministry in the United Kingdom.  
The Board is happy to report that 2015 was a fruitful year. All 
our provinces and ministries were able to raise sufficient 
funds to enable them to operate without any financial 
difficulties though we still need prayers for our smaller 
provinces to be able to increase their tithing. Some changes 
were implemented following the audits by the tax office in 
2014, and these have not had a negative effect on our 
finances and operations. We pray that as we work ZEGU 
Miracle Talents in 2016, our members will remain faithful in 
tithing.  
2015 was also a year where the Lord did great things through 
His children. There was an increase of 17% on tithing despite 
the working of Home Talents, which is a sign of faithfulness 
in tithing made by the children of God.   
 
International Projects - ZEGU& MBUYA DORCAS 
HOSPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 
We thank the God of our father Ezekiel that we were able to 
fulfil our obligation towards ZEGU and Mbuya Dorcas 
hospital, as requested by our International Headquarters. 
 
Assets Management 
The Board has revisited the issue of our assets management. 
The Chairman of the Board of Trustees, who is also head of 
the assets team within the National Finance Board, remains 
overall in charge. There is now a new team who will also 
include representatives from each province. A Pastor has 
been assigned to work with this team, who will offer pastoral 
cover on behalf of the National Executive.  
The team are responsible for the management of all assets, 
namely mission houses and their contents, as well as church 
equipment within offices and assemblies. The team will make 
periodical visits to Mission Houses, assemblies and every 
other place where church assets are kept. 
The construction of the National Centre started during the 
year.  
 

Audits 
We are continuing to 
comply with the laws of 
this nation, and are 
happy to report that our 
books of accounts have 
been audited and filed to 
the regulating bodies on 
time. 
 
2016 Plans 
We are taking on the 
process of conducting 
elections for Finance 
Committees in our 6 
Provinces and 20 
Regions. We are 
planning to train these 
new committees and 
support them in every 
way possible as they 
start their new terms. 
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